
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PO BOX 6108 ▪ 210 W. 6TH AVENUE, KENNEWICK, WA 99336 
PHONE: (509) 585-4275     FAX: (509) 585-4442 

 

 
CITY OF KENNEWICK HEARING EXAMINER 

James M. Driscoll, Hearing Examiner 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 12, 2018 @ 6:00 PM 
KENNEWICK CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBER 

210 W. 6TH AVE, KENNEWICK, WA 99336 
 

Procedure for Participation  
• Please sign in if you wish to receive a copy of the decision when it is issued and if you plan to 

give testimony. 
• When recognized by the Examiner, state your name, address and whether you are representing 

only yourself or others.  
• All remarks, comments, and questions should be addressed to the Hearing Examiner and not to 

the audience or parties. You may offer written comments or other items (such as photographs) 
to the Hearing Examiner as an exhibit for the permanent record. Please provide at least three 
(3) copies of each item submitted: one copy for the Hearing Examiner, one for the Official 
Record, and one for Staff). During an Appeal Hearing, if the appellant and the applicant are 
different parties, then a fourth copy of all documentation is requested. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PROCEDURAL INFORMATION 
 

III. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Preliminary Plat (PP) No. 18-01/PLN-2018-00064, proposing to develop approximately 5.04 
acres of land into 19 single-family lots.  The site is generally located at 4001 S. Vancouver 
Street.  The site is currently zoned Residential, Low Density (RL), the Comprehensive Plan 
designation is Low Density Residential.  The applicant & property owner is Brad Beauchamp, 
BMB Development, 3411 W. Canyon Lakes Drive, Kennewick, WA 99337. 

 
B. Preliminary Plat (PP) No. 18-02/PLN-2018-00146, proposing to develop approximately 2.29 

acres of land into 14 lots.  The site is generally located north of Canal Drive at the southwest 
corner of W. Umatilla Avenue and N. Grant Street.  The site is currently zoned Residential, 
Medium Density (RM-6), the Comprehensive Plan designation is Medium Density Residential.  
The applicant is Dean Maldonado, 5453 Ridgeline Drive, Ste. 160, Kennewick, WA, 99336.  The 
property owner is Gerald & Kathy Erwin, PO Box 820528, Vancouver, WA, 98682. 

 
 

IV. ADJOURN 
 

 
 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 

Staff Report Date: March 5, 2018 
 
Public Hearing Date and Location:  March 12, 2018, Kennewick City Hall 
 
Report Prepared By: Wes Romine 
    Development Services Manager 
 
Report Reviewed By: Gregory McCormick, AICP 
    Planning Director 
 
Summary Recommendation:   The City of Kennewick RECOMMENDS that   
     Preliminary Plat 18-01 be APPROVED with conditions. 
 
Summary of Proposal: Vancouver Meadows, Preliminary Plat for a subdivision on a 5.04 

acre parcel, proposed to be divided into 19 lots for single family 
homes.   

 
Proposal Location: East of S. Vancouver Street and north of W. 45th Avenue at 4001 

S. Vancouver Street.  Parcel No. 1-1489-400-0005-001. 
 
Legal Description:  
1-1489-400-0005-001 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTH ONE/HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH RANGE 29, EXCEPT ROAD, 
TOGETHER WITH THE SOUTH 15 FEET OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTH 
ONE/HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (DESCRIPTION 
CHANGE 12-31-84) 10 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT ALONG NORTH BORDER. 
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS 4-2-82. RELEASE AND MERGER OF EASEMENT 12-31-84. 
IRRIGATION AGREEMENT 12-31-84. 
 
 
Property Owner:  BMB Development Inc. 
    Brad Beauchamp, Quantum Development 
    3411 Canyon Lakes Drive 
    Kennewick, WA  99336 

 
Applicant:   Brad Beauchamp 
    3411 Canyon Lakes Drive 
    Kennewick, WA  99336 

 
 

 
 

 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND  

COMMUNITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION TO 
THE HEARING EXAMINER 

 
FILE NO: PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 

                 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Engineer:   Hall Engineering 
10 South Auburn Street 

    Kennewick, Washington 99336 
 
Surveyor:   Richard Russum 

Worley Surveying 
P.O. Box 6132 

    Kennewick, Washington 99336 
 
Approval Criteria: 1. Comprehensive Plan – Land Use 
    2. KMC Title 18 – Zoning 
    3. KMC Title 17 – Subdivisions 
    4.  KMC Section 5.56 – Public Works Construction Standards 
    5. Washington State Environmental Policy Act 

 
Preliminary Plat Key Application Processing Dates: 
 

Pre-Application/Feasibility Meeting NA 
Application Submittal January 9, 2018 
Determination of Completeness Issued January 9, 2018 
Notice of Application Mailed January 16, 2018 
City Department Review Meeting January 24, 2018 
SEPA Threshold Determination Issued NA – Under 30 lot C.O.K. threshold  
Property Posting Sign Jan. 16, 2018 & Feb. 23, 2018 
Date of Published Notice of Public Hearing February 25, 2018 
Date of Mailed Notice of Public Hearing February 22, 2018 
SEPA Appeal Period Ends NA 
Public Hearing Date March 12, 2018 
 
 
 

 
Exhibits: 
1  Staff Report 
2  Application 
3  Notice of Application/Mailing List 
4  Vicinity Map 
5  Preliminary Plat Plans 
6  Conceptual Grading Plan 
7  City Department Comments 
8  Outside Agency Comments 
9  Neighborhood Comments 
10  Applicant Letter  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Staff Analysis of Proposal & Discussion:  

Vancouver Meadows, Preliminary Plat (PP 18-01) is a request for a 19 lot single-family 
home subdivision on an approximately 5.04 acre parcel of land that will be developed in one 
phase.  The lots range in size from 7,982 square feet to 35,518 square feet.  Lots 12, 13, & 
14 are currently encumbered by a PUD easement that will need to be vacated to make 
those lots easier to build on.  The applicant has proposed to vacate the easement after the 
power lines are removed.  The project is located at the west side of S. Vancouver Street and 
north of W. 45th Avenue at 4001 S. Vancouver Street.  Access to the lots will be from the 
extension of W. 39th Avenue.  The site is zoned Residential Low Density (RL) which allows a 
minimum lot size of 7,500 square feet.  The City of Kennewick’s Single-Family Residential 
Design Standards apply to this project.    

A Preliminary Plat (KMC 17.10) is the first step in a subdivision process for subdivisions with 
more than nine (9) lots and is an approval for overall lot layout and compliance with land use 
regulations.  A Final Plat is required to create lots for preliminary plats and is the last phase 
in the subdivision process, and must be recorded prior to the creation of individual lots.  
Final plat approval is based on the Preliminary Plat conditions of approval.  A civil permit 
with a detailed review of street, utility and stormwater construction standards, and street and 
utility construction or bonding for incomplete work is required prior the final plat approval.   

Property History: 

1. The subject parcel was annexed into the City in May of 1979 with a Residential 
Suburban (RS) zoning designation (Ord. 5142).  

2. The zoning for the subject parcel was changed to Residential Low Density (RL) 
(COZ 17-06,Ord 5385) in December of 2017.  

 
Density/Lot Size: 
 

Per the Table of Residential Development Standards (KMC 18.12.010 A.2) the 
Residential Low Density (RL) zoning district does not have a minimum or 
maximum density requirement, however the minimum lot size allowed is 7,500 
square feet.  The smallest lot is proposed is 7,982 square feet.   

 
STAFF COMMENT: The preliminary plat as proposed meets the Residential 
Development Standards contained in KMC 18.12.010(A.2), as well as the Single-Family 
Residential Design Standards.  

 
Traffic: 
 
The City’s traffic engineer has determined that this project meets concurrency for 
transportation. 

 
Full residential street improvements are required for the extension of W. 39th Avenue, and 
half collector street improvements will be required where the project fronts W. Vancouver 
Street.  
 
Traffic mitigation fees of approximately $938 per dwelling unit will be required per the City of 
Kennewick’s traffic mitigation ordinance (Ord. 5596).  The $938 per dwelling unit Traffic 
Impact Fee may have a cost of living increase adjustment in 2018.  Traffic mitigation fees 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 4 of 7 
 

can be paid at the time of building permit issuance or deferred until occupancy with a 
recorded covenant of payment obligation form.  
 
It is the Traffic Engineer’s professional opinion that the street layout will likely generate 
neighborhood speeding concern complaints, so traffic calming elements will be required and 
installed per approval of the City Traffic Engneer. 

 
Storm Water: 
 
The City stormwater standard for residential subdivisions is to be designed to retain and 
dispose of the calculated difference between a 25-year, 24 hour event for the developed 
state and the 24-hour event for the natural pre-developed state.  Detention ponds (control 
outlet) may be used only where it can be clearly demonstrated that infiltration, or retention, 
are not feasible per City of Kennewick Standard Specifications.  Prior to Final Plat approval 
the applicant will be required to submit detailed civil engineering drawings for review and 
approval to the City’s Public Works department.  This submittal will include a stormwater 
plan that meets City standards.   
 
Per the City’s Department of Public Works comment #20, there is an existing natural 
drainage way through the City that is on the subject parcel.  The storm water design must 
include conveyance of upstream flow through the project. 
 
Streets & Utilities: 
 
A separate permit will be required from the Department of Public Works prior to construction 
for driveways, sidewalks, wheelchair ramps and utility extensions (water, sewer, street, 
storm drainage, street lights, fire hydrants, etc.).  Full street improvements for residential 
streets within the subdivision will be required per KMC 5.56.270 and are required to be 
constructed per Kennewick Standard Detail 2-1, sheet 2 of 4.  The Residential Design 
Standards allow curb tight sidewalks as an option to separated sidewalks; however the 
sidewalk at driveway curb cuts needs to meet ADA standards.  Half street improvements per 
City of Kennewick Standard Drawing Detail 2-3 will be required where the development 
fronts S. Vancouver Street.  

 
There is an existing zone 3, 8-inch water main in W. 39th Avenue stubbed to eastern side of 
the proposed subdivision, and there is also an existing zone 3, 8-inch water main in S. 
Vancouver Street.   The developer will be required to loop the water mains to avoid buildup 
of stagnant water and minimize bacteria regrowth.   
 
There is an existing 8-inch sanitary sewer main in W. 39th Avenue stubbed to the eastern 
side of the proposed subdivision. 
 
Per comments from the Benton-Franklin Health Department, the existing dwelling must be 
connected to City of Kennewick water and sewer and the existing well must be 
decommissioned prior to approval of the final plat. 

 
Parks: 
 
The City of Kennewick adopted a Park Impact Fee ordinance on December 5, 2017 that 
became effective January 1, 2018 (Ord. 5736).  The proposed subdivision is located east of 
US 395 (Service Area 2).  Park Impact Fees per the rate for Service Area 2 are $760 per 
single-family unit and are due at the time of Building Permit application, or can be deferred 
until occupancy with a recorded covenant of payment obligation form.  



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Critical Areas: 
 
There are no Critical Areas identified on the City of Kennewick’s critical area maps, however 
per comments from the Department of Ecology, based on Google Earth aerial images, they 
have identified potential wetland impacts and recommend the applicant use a wetland 
consultant to conduct a formal wetland delineation of the area prior to any development.  At 
the time of the staff report the applicant has not completed a wetland study. 

 
Schools: 
 
Per a memo from Doug Carl of the Kennewick School district, the schools that will serve the 
subdivision are the Sage Crest Elementary School, Horse Heaven HIlls Middle School, and 
Kennewick High School.  Students living in the proposed subdivision are in a walking zone 
for Horse Heaven Hills Middle School.  Sagecrest Elementary School and Kennewick High 
School are in a bussing zone.  All new streets within the subdivision will be required to have 
5-foot wide sidewalks which will connect to S. Vancouver Street.  New sidewalks will also be 
required where the proposed subdivision fronts S. Vancouver Street.  S. Vancouver Street 
does not currently have sidewalks between the subject parcel and W. 37th Avenue, however 
there are wide gravel road shoulders that will allow a safe walking route to Horse Heaven 
Hills Middle School until S. Vancouver is upgraded to City Street standards with sidewalks.   
 
Per the memo the Kennewick School District has the capacity to add students at all levels at 
the three schools mentioned above. 
 
 
Surrounding Property: 

 
The surrounding property to the east is zoned Residential Low Density (RL) and has similar 
size lots as being proposed for the proposed preliminary plat.  Property to the south and 
west is also zoned Residential Low Density (RL) and occupied with single-family lots slightly 
larger than those being proposed.   Adjacent property to the north is a large single-family lot 
zoned Residential Suburban (RS). 
 
Staff Comment: It is staff’s opinion that the proposed Preliminary Plat will be harmonious 
with the surrounding properties.  

 
 
Provisions for Public Health, Safety, and Welfare: 

 
Staff Comment: It is Staff’s opinion that appropriate provisions have been made for, but 
not limited to, the public health, safety, and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage 
ways, streets or roads, alleys, public sidewalks, utility easements and other public ways, 
transit stops, potable water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation areas, 
playgrounds, schools and school grounds, and the proposed subdivision has considered all 
other relevant facts and other planning features that assure safe walking conditions for 
students who walk to and from school. 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Staff is of the opinion that this request is consistent with and generally conforms to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and it will implement, goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Particularly the following:  



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 1: “Provide for attractive, walkable, and well designed residential 
neighborhoods, with differing densities and compatible with neighboring areas.” 

Staff Comment: The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use, is zoned similar to much of the surrounding property 
and complies with development standards for Residential Low Density (RL) zoning. 

 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 2: “Provide appropriate public facilities supporting residential areas.” 

Staff Comment: City water and sewer is available at W. 39th Avenue and S. 
Vancouver Street.  The extension of W. 39th Avenue will provide connectivity to S. 
Vancouver Street. 

 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 3: “Promote a variety of residential densities with a minimum target 
of 3 units per acre as averaged throughout the urban area.” 

Staff Comment: The density for the proposed development area is 3.77 units per 
acre. 
 

CRITICAL AREAS AND SHORELINE GOAL 3: “Regulate or mitigate activities in or adjacent 
to critical areas or the shoreline to avoid adverse environmental impacts”. 

Staff Comment:  City of Kennewick critical area maps do not show any 
critical areas on or near the proposed project.   The applicant has contacted a wetland 
consultant to address the Department of Ecology wetland comments.  

 
 
The City of Kennewick hereby RECOMMENDS that Preliminary Plat 18-01 be 
APPROVED with the following conditions: 
 
1. Comply with City of Kennewick regulatory controls, policies and codes, including the 

Single-family Residential Design Standards. 
 

2. All fees required by the City shall be paid prior to the approval of the final plat. 
 

3. Construct residential streets per City of Kennewick Standard Detail 2-1, sheet 2 of 4.  
The Single-Family Residential Design Standards allow an option for curb tight sidewalks 
which may be used. 
 

4. Development shall be in conformance with the plat drawing (Exhibit 5). 
 

5. Comply with Traffic Engineer memorandum dated February 7, 2018 (Exhibit 7). 

6. Comply with Public Works memorandum dated January 23, 2018 (Exhibit 7). 

7. Comply with the Benton-Franklin Health Department comments dated January 26, 2018 
(Exhibit 8). 

8. Comply with Kennewick Irrigation District letter dated February 15, 2018 (Exhibit 8).   

9. Geo-Tec reports are required for each lot at the time of building permit submittal.  With 
prior approval a blanket geological report may be accepted as long as all applicable 
codes are met regarding soil bearing capacity. 

10. Provide dust control method(s) such as hydroseeding for all areas of the site that are 
disturbed.  Re-hydroseeding may be required. 
 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 7 of 7 
 

11. Residential street trees are required to be installed prior to issuance of the Certificate of 
Occupancy for each new home.  Provide a list of street trees to be used for approval 
prior to planting. 

 
12. A landscape plan must be submitted for approval of all common areas, open spaces and 

rights-of-way not left in a natural state, listing the number, location, and species of trees, 
sizes of plant material, and ground cover prior to final plat approval.  The landscape plan 
shall be prepared by a licensed landscape architect or licensed landscape installer 
drawn to a legible scale. 

 
13. Common area landscaping is required to be installed or bonded for prior to final plat. 

 
14. Execute a written agreement to the satisfaction of the City Attorney which will allow the 

City to make arrangements for maintenance of any common areas, open spaces, private 
roads, and common landscape areas should the Homeowner’s Association fail or refuse 
to maintain these areas. 

 
15. The Preliminary Plat (PP 18-01) expires 5 years from the approval date.  The City may 

grant an extension, but any extension application must be applied for before the 
approved preliminary plat expires. 

 
 

 
 
Report Prepared By and Contact Person: 
Wes Romine 
Development Services Manager 
wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us   509-585-4558 

mailto:wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us


EXHIBIT 2

Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT 3

Page 1 of 9



EXHIBIT 3

Page 2 of 9



EXHIBIT 3

Page 3 of 9



EXHIBIT 3

Page 4 of 9



EXHIBIT 3

Page 5 of 9



 
 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF PROPERTY POSTING  
 

The ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
sign was posted on    ____________________ (date) at this location: 
 
  
 
Project/Permit #      
 
Proposal     
 
Posted by       
 
Signature      Phone #     
 
Date  _________________________ 
 
Signature Witnessed by __________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT 3

Page 6 of 9



EXHIBIT 3

Page 7 of 9



Order Confirmation

Customer Fax

Customer

Customer Address

Payor Customer

Customer Account

Customer Phone

Payor Account

Ordered By

Customer EMail

Special Pricing

PO Number Tear Sheets

Invoice Text

Proofs Affidavits

Net Amount

Blind Box

Tax Amount

Promo Type

Package Buy

Total Amount

Materials

Payment Method

Payment Amount Amount Due

Payor Address

Payor Phone

KENNEWICK CITY OF/LEGALS KENNEWICK CITY OF/LEGALS

450496 450496

Melinda Didier

PO BOX 6108

KENNEWICK WA 99336  USA

PO BOX 6108

KENNEWICK WA 99336 USA

 0  0  1

NOA -PP 18-01 Vancouver Meadows

$242.24 $0.00 $242.24

Invoice

$0.00

Sales Rep

ccortez@tricityherald.com

Order Taker

ccortez@tricityherald.com

0003540090

Ad Order Number Order Source

509-585-4200 509-585-4200

$242.24

_FRM_OrderConfirmation.rptPage 1 of 32/22/2018  9:30:18AM

EXHIBIT 3

Page 8 of 9



Ad Attributes Ad Released Pick UpExternal Ad Number

Ad Number Ad Type Production Method Production Notes

0003540090-01 TRI-Legal Liner AdBooker

No

Ad Order Information

Ad Size Color

1 X 97 li

0301 - Legals & Public Notices

0300 - Legals ClassifiedTRI- Tri-City Herald

02/25/2018

Run Dates

Schedule CostPlacementProduct 

PositionRun Schedule Invoice Text

Times Run

 1

NOA -PP 18-01 Vancouver Meadows

$242.24

_FRM_OrderConfirmation.rptPage 2 of 32/22/2018  9:30:18AM

EXHIBIT 3

Page 9 of 9



Pe
rm

itt
in

g 
M

ap

So
ur

ce
s:

 
E

sr
i, 

H
ER

E
, 

D
eL

or
m

e,
In

te
rm

ap
, i

nc
re

m
en

t P
 C

or
p.

,

Se
w

er
M

ai
nl

in
e

St
re

et
N

am
e

W
at

er
M

ai
nl

in
e

Su
rv
ey
A
dd

re
ss
Po

in
t

<a
ll 

ot
he

r v
al

ue
s>

Ap
ar

tm
en

t

Bu
ild

in
g

C
on

do

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e

Pa
rc

el

Su
rv

ey
Ad

dr
es

sP
oi

nt
S

up
p

Su
rv

ey
Ea

se
m

en
t

Ja
nu

ar
y 

23
, 2

01
8

C
ity

 o
f K

en
ne

w
ic

k
Ar

cG
IS

 W
eb

A
pp

 B
ui

ld
er

1 
in

ch
 =

 3
00

 fe
et

0
31

0
62

0
15

5
ft

0
90

18
0

45
m

1:
3,

60
0

Th
is

 p
la

n 
is

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l u

se
 o

nl
y.

 C
ity

 o
f K

en
ne

w
ic

k 
ac

ce
pt

s 
no

 li
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 e

rr
or

 w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r. 

EXHIBIT 4

Page 1 of 1

wesr
Polygonal Line

wesr
Text Box
Project SitePP 18-01



EXHIBIT 5

Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT 6

Page 1 of 1



 
 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4481      Fax (509) 585-4451      Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

1 of 2 

Memorandum 
Public Works 

 
 
 

 
 

To:  Wes Romine, Development Services Manager  
 
From:  Fernando Garcia, Development Services Supervisor 
 
Date:  January 23, 2018 
 
Re:  Public Works Consolidated Comments         
 
Project: PP No.18-01 / PLN-2018-00064 
   
1. Developer will be required to provide construction of public roads, sidewalks, streetlights, 

storm drainage, and designate sidewalk and utility easements all in conformance with the 
latest City of Kennewick (COK) Standard Specifications and details.  
 

2. As part of all residential development construction plans, there shall be a separate 
schematic drawing which, at a minimum, shows the power source(s), wiring diagram, 
street light pole spacing, and street permanent signing per COK Standard Specifications 
7-10.  Combine signing, striping, and illumination plans on the same drawing with other 
elements left off. 

 
3. Sidewalks adjacent to the existing home on Lot 9 shall be constructed in conjunction with 

the road construction per COK detail 2-1 sheet 2 of 4. 
 

4. Sidewalks shall be widened an additional 18-inches when adjoining a wall, or fence, per 
COK detail 2-10, sheet 1 of 8, note 4. 

 
5. Due to project phasing, any temporary dead end street 150-feet or greater from the street 

intersection will require construction of a temporary cul-de-sac, constructed with 6-inches 
of base rock and 2-inches of Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA). 

 
6. Civil Drawing shall include only the proposed construction with each phase of the project. 

 
7. The developer is responsible for providing the project with a complete water main system 

serving the development with fire hydrants installed every intersection and at 500-foot 
intervals. Fire hydrants servicing development to provide fire flow required by the Fire 
Department. 

 
8. There is an existing 8-inch water main along the north side of the property west of 

Vancouver St into W 22nd Ave installed per Record Drawing C2376_05.   
 

9. There is an existing Pressure Zone 3, 8 inch water main in W. 39th Ave. stubbed to the 
south portion of the eastern side of the proposed subdivision; this water main was installed 

Leading the Way 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 1 of 9

mailto:Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us


PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4481      Fax (509) 585-4451      Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

2 of 2 

by Record Drawing C-4022. There is also an existing Zone 3, 8 inch water main in S. 
Vancouver St. Record Drawing D-3008. One, 1 inch water meter serving parcel 1-1489-
400-0004-001 (3805 S. Vancouver St.) is connected to this main. 

 
10. Developer will be required to loop all water mains to avoid the buildup of stagnant water 

and be able to assist in minimizing bacteria re-growth and also taste and odor concerns 
associated with stagnant water. All proposed extensions must conform to the adopted 
master plan, as amended and all proposed extensions of water mains must conform to an 
overall program for a grid system, with provisions made for extensions or looping for 
circulation where at all possible. Per KMC 14.10.010. 

 
11. A water system hydraulic analysis may be required to hydraulically model proposed water 

main system for the development. 
 

12. Potable water is not available for irrigation purposes.  Provide irrigation water to irrigate 
proposed plat.   

 
13. Provide a waterline comprehensive plan with water main sizes for review as part of the 

civil drawings. 
 

14. There is an existing 8-inch sanitary sewer main in W. 39th Ave. stubbed to the south 
portion of the eastern edge of parcel 1-1489-400-0005-001 installed by Record Drawing C-
4022. There is also an existing 8-inch sanitary sewer main running along a portion of the 
southern edge of parcel 1-1489-400-0005-001 as well as a 8 inch sewer main running 
down the center of S. Vancouver St. installed by Record Drawing A-1029, this will require 
a 15 foot easement. There is one existing 4 inch sanitary sewer service stubbed to the 
west side of both parcels from this main line. Sanitary sewer extension will be required at 
Developer expense. 

 
15. Provide sanitary sewer main sizes on the sanitary sewer comprehensive plan for review as 

part of the civil drawings. 
 

16. All plans showing existing water or sewer utilities will need to call out the plan set number 
that installed such utilities as part of the design. All plans need to clearly identify the size 
and type of water/sewer utility that is being proposed or connected to (ie “Existing 8-inch 
Water” or similar). 

 
17. The City has formally adopted the Storm Management Manual of Eastern Washington. All 

design, construction, and post construction management of storm drainage facilities shall 
be in accordance with the Storm Management Manual of Eastern Washington and City 
Standards.  

 
18. Residential sub-divisions shall be designed to retain and dispose of the calculated 

difference between a 25-year, 24-hour, event for the developed state and the 24-hour 
event for the natural pre-developed state.  Detention ponds (control outlet) may be used 
only where it can be clearly demonstrated that infiltration, or retention, are not feasible per 
City of Kennewick Standard Specifications section 5-9.02.  

 
19. Storm drainage systems to be dedicated to the public, shall be designed to retain and 

dispose of the calculated difference between a 25-year 24-hour event for the developed 
state and the 10-year 24-hour event for the natural pre-developed state storm per COK 
Standard Specifications section 5-9.02. 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 2 of 9

mailto:Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us


PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4289       Fax (509) 585-4511      Bruce.Beauchene@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

 
20. Parcel number 1-1489-400-0005-001 is a part of a natural drainage way through the City. 

Design must include conveyance of the upstream flow through the project considering the 
effects on downstream capacity. The Storm Water Management Manual for Eastern 
Washington (SMMEW) shall be followed through the development of the Storm Water Site 
Plan (drainage report) and storm water design. We recommend starting in Section 3.1 of 
the manual. https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/0410076.html  

 
21. All injection control wells (infiltration structures) must be installed and registered per the 

Washington State Underground Injection Control (UIC) rule prior to construction. Provide 
UIC registration numbers for all drywells or other infiltration structures on the Record 
Drawings and before Public Works construction permit is accepted. See UIC Registration 
link; http://www.ecy.wa.gov/PROgrams/wq/grndwtr/uic/index.html      

 
22. Provide storm main sizes on storm comprehensive plan for City review. Provide infiltration 

testing at the location and depth of the planned infiltration structures as well as a soils log 
5 feet below that point.  

 
23. For civil plan reviews submit the following: 

a. Application for Civil Review and Permitting  
b. One full size set (24” x 36”) Xerox copy of the construction plans with Storm 

Calculations  
c. One full size PDF copy of each shall be submitted to the Public Works 

Department for review. 
 

24. Plan review and utility fees will be quoted from the construction cost from the Contractor 
selected by the Developer to construct the project.  Cost shall be paid in the amount of five 
percent (5%), and the construction cost shall be determined by the actual bid document 
reviewed, and approved, by the City Engineer. 

 
25. Kennewick Survey Data requirements: 

a. All projects will be built with current City Survey Data.   
b. For detailed information on Kennewick Survey Data and Record Drawings & 

Easements go to COK website @ https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-
Review 

c. Questions contact Matt Garrity at matthew.garrity@ci.kennewick.wa.us  509-
585-4531 

 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 3 of 9

https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/0410076.html
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/PROgrams/wq/grndwtr/uic/index.html
https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-Review
https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-Review
mailto:matthew.garrity@ci.kennewick.wa.us


______________________________________________________________________________ 
Traffic Engineering Division 

1010 E. Chemical Drive * PO Box 6108 * Kennewick, WA  99336 
John Deskins – 509-585-4400 * Joe Seet – 509-585-4527* Alisha Piper – 509-585-4342 

 

To: Wes Romine, Development Services Manager  

From: Joe Seet, Assistant Traffic Engineer  

Date:  February 7, 2018 

Re:  Traffic Engineering Comments for 4001 S Vancouver St. 

Project: PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 

Disclaimer 
The comments provided below are based on the project documents as submitted for the 
above referenced project.  Subsequent project document submittals with revisions will 
require new reviews to determine the accuracy and validity of the comments below. 

KMC 13.16 Transportation Impact Fees 
 

1. The 2017 Traffic Impact Fees is $938/unit based on a land use of Single-Family 
Detached Housing.   Based on the submitted project documents, Traffic Impact 
Fees are estimated at $17,822 based on an estimated project size of 19 units.   

2. Residential single family and duplexes – The final fee may be deferred until the 
time of closing of the sale of the unit by recording a covenant against the 
property. 

Proposed Driveway(s) 
 

1. Refer to CoK Dwg. No. 2-10 (9 & 10 of 10), for the maximum residential driveway 
width(s) at bottom of curb cut. (Residential driveway width(s) at bottom of curb: 2 
car garage – 24’ maximum; 3 car garage – 30’ maximum.  Driveway curb cut 
transition is 6’ minimum at 12:1 maximum longitudinal slope. Landing pad at the 
end of the curb cut transition is 5’ minimum (or 2.5’ minimum if abuts a common 
property line.) 

2. Provide sightline setback triangles per KMC 13.12.020 for the proposed 
intersection onto S. Vancouver St. 

3. Lot 9 will need to access from W 39th Ave. 
4. Lots 1 and 14 does not have adequate frontage to meet KAC 13-46-110, Corner 

Clearance.  Lot 14 frontage width will need to be re-configured or utilize a 
joint/shared driveway to meet the minimum spacing.  See below. 

MEMORANDUM 

 Traffic Engineering Division 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 4 of 9



PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Figure 1 

 
5. S. Vancouver St. is a Collector Street Lots with a posted speed of 35 mph would 

require 150’ minimum driveway spacing.  Lot 15 does not to meet the minimum 
driveway spacing per KAC 13-46.120.   Lot 15 will need to be re-configured to 
meet the minimum spacing or to submit a request for a design standard deviation 
from the Deputy Public Works Director. 
 

 
Figure 2. 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 5 of 9



PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
6. Joint/shared driveways will require a mutual Access Easement recorded for the 

lots sharing the common driveway. The easement shall be recorded with 
dimensional information and location description and details.   

Right of Way and Easement 
 

1. S. Vancouver St. is functionally classified as Collector Street.  Half street 
improvements are required, including pavement, curb, gutter, sidewalk and street 
lighting per City of Kennewick Standard Drawing 2-3.  A 15’ public utility 
easement is required to be recorded along the proposed development’s frontage 
on S. Vancouver St. 

2. W 39th Ave is functionally classified as Local Residential Street.  Full street 
standards per CoK Std. Dwg. 2-1.  Refer to Dwg. 2-1 for the public right of way 
and easement requirements. 

3. W 39th Ave existing roadway easterly of the property’s property line was 
constructed to previously adopted City standards and does not match the current 
CoK Std. Dwg. 2-1. The roadway will require transitional tapers for the roadway’s 
travel lanes to maintain a consistent traffic path. 

4. The Applicant has proposed a speed hump on W 39th Ave to address traffic 
calming concerns and will provide the location and design to Traffic for review.  
The speed hump will be installed prior to any building permit issuance.  

American Disability Act (ADA) Compliance 
  

1. All proposed pedestrian facilities within the public right of way and easement, 
including but not limited to driveways, sidewalks, curb ramps, etc., shall be ADA 
compliant while maintaining Pedestrian Accessibility Route (PAR) accessibility, 
continuity and connectivity. 

2. At all proposed sidewalk termini, provide asphalt transition ramps or match into 
existing sidewalks for ADA compliance. 

Street Lights 
  

1. Per KMC 5.53, Public Works Construction Standard Chapter 6 requires the 
design and installation of roadway lighting per City of Kennewick Standard 
Drawings 6-1 and 6-2 along S. Vancouver St and W 39th Ave.  

2. Roadway lighting plan sheet. – Per CoK Standard Specifications 6-1.02, the plan 
needs to include call-outs for the power source, meter locations, junction boxes, 
conduits and conduits.  

3. A new power source is needed for the new roadway lighting.  The new roadway 
lighting is not allowed to connect into existing street light circuits for power 
source. 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 6 of 9



1

Wes Romine

From: Wes Romine
Sent: Monday, February 05, 2018 5:59 PM
To: Wes Romine
Subject: FW: 4001 S Vancouver PLN-2018-00064 - Traffic Comments

 
 

From: Joe Seet  
Sent: Friday, January 12, 2018 2:15 PM 
To: 'brad beauchamp' 
Cc: Michelle Dellinger; Alisha Piper 
Subject: RE: 4001 S Vancouver PLN-2018-00064 
 
Brad – Based on your response, the traffic speed hump is acceptable and no traffic analysis is required. 
 
Joe Seet, PE 
509.585.4527    
joe.seet@ci.kennewick.wa.us 
 
This e‐mail and your response are considered a public record and will be subject to disclosure under Washington's Public 
Records Disclosure Act. 
 

From: brad beauchamp [mailto:bmbdevelopment@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Friday, January 12, 2018 2:02 PM 
To: Joe Seet 
Cc: Michelle Dellinger; Alisha Piper 
Subject: Re: 4001 S Vancouver PLN-2018-00064 
 
We will go with the speed bump option  

Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Jan 12, 2018, at 1:43 PM, Joe Seet <Joe.Seet@ci.kennewick.wa.us> wrote: 

Brad – I went back and checked the meeting records.  John was concerned about the effects of 
increased traffic via the new roadway and traffic calming needs when he was asking for the limited 
traffic study.  I would be inclined to waive the traffic study if a traffic calming device (see attached) is 
installed. 
  
Joe Seet, PE 
509.585.4527    
joe.seet@ci.kennewick.wa.us 
  
This e‐mail and your response are considered a public record and will be subject to disclosure under 
Washington's Public Records Disclosure Act. 
  
From: brad beauchamp [mailto:bmbdevelopment@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Friday, January 12, 2018 9:50 AM 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 7 of 9



2

To: Joe Seet; Michelle Dellinger 
Subject: 4001 S Vancouver PLN-2018-00064 
  
Per our conversation here is the proposed plat. Please let me know if a traffic report will Not be needed so 
Michelle can move this forward.  
  
  
  
  
Brad Beauchamp 
BMB Development Inc 
509-308-6556 
<CoK Traffic Calming Devices.pdf> 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 8 of 9



      

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

210 W 6TH AVE * PO Box 6108* Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-585-4563 * 509-585-4442 Fax 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To:  Michelle Dellinger, Development Services  
 
From:  Joe Terpenning, Deputy Fire Marshal 
 
Date:  January 24, 2018 
 
Re:  4001 South Washington 
 
Project: PLN 2018-00064 
   
 
1. Install one (1) fire hydrant in accordance with City of Kennewick Engineering standards to 

meet the minimum water flow and spacing requirements of International Fire Code, 
Appendix B & C.  The fire hydrant shall be installed in the southwest corner of lot 14. 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 Fire Department 

 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 9 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 1 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 2 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 3 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 4 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 5 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 6 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 7 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 8 of 12



EXHIBIT 8

Page 9 of 12



1

Wes Romine

From: Shanna Everson <eversons@bentonpud.org>
Sent: Monday, January 29, 2018 8:12 AM
To: Wes Romine
Subject: RE: [E] PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064/ED 18-01

I need easements at the front of the properties at least 10’ wide or 18’ for sidewalk, curb, and utilities if the city is 
requiring it.   Also, what are we doing with the utility easement going through lot 14,13 and lot 12?  That is how the 
house gets fed on lot 9. 
  
Thanks,  
  

Shanna Everson 
Distribution Design Tech 1 
509-585-5367 
  

 
  

From: Michelle Dellinger [mailto:Michelle.Dellinger@ci.kennewick.wa.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 7:07 AM 
To: Alex Sligar Benton Clean Air; BC Planning Department; BC Planning Department Clark Posey; Ben Franklin Transit - 
Kevin Sliger; Ben Franklin Transit Tony Kalmbach; Benton Clean Air Authority - Rob Rodger; Benton Clean Air Authority - 
Tyler Thompson; Benton Franklin Health Dept - Rick Dawson; Bob Roe; David Smith; EngService; Jeff Vosahlo; Chad 
Brooks; Mike Irving; Shanna Everson; BPA - Deborah Rodgers; BPA - Joe Cottrell; BPA - Mike Deklyen; Cascade Gas 
James Thomas; Charter Communication - Dean Kelley; Charter Communications - Robert Early; City of Richland - Rick 
Simon; Columbia Irrigation District; Consolidated Tribes of Umatilla Indian Reservation - Carey L. Miller; CTUIR - Teara 
Farrow Ferman; Department of Ecology SEPA UNIT; Dept of Fish & Wildlife; Dept of Fish & Wildlife - Michael Ritter; Dept 
of Natural Resources SEPA Center; Dustin Fisk - Kennewick School District (dustin.fisk@ksd.org); Frontier - Gary Taylor; 
Frontier - Gregory Goodwin; Kenewick Irrigation District - Jason McShane; Kennewick Irrigation District - Ben Woodard; 
Kennewick School District - Doug Carl; Mike Blatman; US Army Corps of Engineers; Williams Pipeline - Audie Neuson; 
WSDOT; Yakama Nation - Thalia Sachtleban 
Subject: [E] PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064/ED 18-01 
  
From:    Wes Romine, Development Services  
  
Date:    January 16, 2018 
  
Re:       Pre-Plat No. PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 
  
The City of Kennewick wishes to inform you of a Pre-Plat application. Please review and submit comments and conditions 
of approval necessary to implement your agency’s applicable regulations. Comments may be mailed to the Development 
Services Division or submitted via e-mail at wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us   Please do not respond to Michelle 
Dellinger. 
  
Project description:  
A Preliminary Plat application and SEPA Checklist ED 18-01 have been submitted by Brad Beauchamp, 3411 W Canyon 
Lakes Dr., Kennewick, WA 99337.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is located at 4001 S Vancouver St.  The site consists of 
approximately 5.04 acres, and is proposed to be divided into 19 single-family lots.  The smallest lot size is 7,631 square 
feet, the largest lot size is 9,072 square feet and the average lot size is 35,518 square feet with an existing single family 

EXHIBIT 8

Page 10 of 12



2

dwelling unit and accessory structure.  The site is currently zoned Residential Low Density District (RL).   The RL zoning 
districts allow a minimum lot size of 7,500 square feet.  The Comprehensive Plan designation is Low Density 
Residential.     
  
Please review and submit your comments to the City of Kennewick Development Services Division, 210 W. 6th Avenue, 
Kennewick, WA  99336, or email to wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us on or before January 31, 2018. 
  

  
 

  
  
Michelle Dellinger 

City of Kennewick Community Planning 
509.585.4416    
michelled@ci.kennewick.wa.us  

          
  

Caution: This email originated from outside of Benton PUD. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe 

 

 
Disclaimer: Public documents and records are available to the public as required under the Washington State Public Records Act (RCW 42.56). The information 
contained in all correspondence with a public entity may be disclosable to third party requesters under the Public Records Act. 

EXHIBIT 8

Page 11 of 12



 
 
 

1 

 

Department of Energy 
 

Bonneville Power Administration 
2211 North Commercial Avenue 

Pasco, Washington  99301 

                          

 TRANSMISSION BUSINESS LINE 

January 22, 2018 
 
In reply refer to: Preliminary Plat PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 and SEPA Checklist ED 18-01 

Located within a Portion of Section 14, Township 8 North, 
                            Range 29 East, W.M., Benton County, Washington  
 
 
Wes Romine A.I.A 
City of Kennewick  
Development Services Manager 
210 W. 6th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Dear Wes: 
 
Bonneville Power Administration’s (BPA) has had the opportunity to review, Preliminary Plat 
PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064 and SEPA Checklist ED 18-01. The request is to divide 
approximately 5.04 acres into 19 single-family lots. The project is located at 4001 S Vancouver 
Street, Kennewick, WA, County parcel number 114894000005001. 

 
In researching our records, we have found that this proposal will not directly impact BPA 
facilities in that area. BPA does not have any objections to the approval of this request at this 
time. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review this application. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Joseph E. Cottrell II 
Field Realty Specialist 

 

EXHIBIT 8

Page 12 of 12



1

Wes Romine

From: Marshall Smith <marshall.steel.smith@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2018 8:58 PM
To: Wes Romine
Subject: Project Proposal at 4001 S Vancouver Street
Attachments: Drainage.png

Wes Romine, 
 
This email is in regards to the proposed housing development planned for 4001 S Vancouver Street by Brad Beauchamp 
of BMB Development. 
 
My wife and I own the property (4007 S Waverly St ) across from the proposed project.  We don't have an issue with the 
project, but are concerned about drainage. 
 
At the back of our property along S. Vancouver St is a drainage culvert that goes under Vancouver and drains (I assumed) 
into the project site. 
 
I have included a satellite image of my property and marked with a red arrow approximately where the culvert starts 
and the direction it goes. 
 
What has been planned with this culvert in regards to the building project? 
 
Thank you, 
 
Marshall S Smith 
4007 S Waverly st, 
Kennewick WA, 99337 
(509)654‐0352 

EXHIBIT 9

Page 1 of 2



EXHIBIT 9

Page 2 of 2



 
3411 Canyon Lakes Dr       Office  509-308-6556 
Kennewick, WA 99336              bmbdevelopment@yahoo.com 
 
02/13/2018 
 
 
RE:  
Vancouver Meadows 
 

1. The Well House on lot 11 will be decommissioned prior to final plat approval 
2. The Septic System on lot 9 will be decommissioned prior to final plat approval. 

The existing home will be connected to city services, water and sewer.  
3. The 10’ PUD easement that crosses lots 12,13,14 will be vacated prior to final 

plat.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
President  
509-308-6556 
Bmbdevelopment@yahoo.com 
     
 

EXHIBIT 10

Page 1 of 1



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 

Staff Report Date: March 1, 2018 
 
Public Hearing Date and Location:  March 12, 2018, Kennewick City Hall 
 
Report Prepared By: Wes Romine 
    Development Services Manager 
 
Report Reviewed By: Gregory McCormick, AICP 
    Planning Director 
 
Summary Recommendation:   The City of Kennewick RECOMMENDS that   
     Preliminary Plat 18-02 be APPROVED with conditions. 
 
Summary of Proposal: Grant Street Development, Preliminary Plat for a subdivision on a 

2 parcels that total approximately 2.29 acres in size, proposed to 
be divided into 14 lots for single family homes.   

 
Proposal Location: West of N. Grant Street and south of W. Umatilla Avenue at 1507 

N. Grant Street and 5529 W. Umatilla Avenue.  Parcel Nos. 1-
3399-201-1560-009 and 1-3399-201-1560-008. 

 
Legal Description:  
1-3399-201-1560-009 
SHORT PLAT #1560, LOT 5, LESS THAT PORTION DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNNING AT 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5 THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 45 
SECONDS WEST 502.60 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 17 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 35 SECONDS 
WEST 136.28 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST 543.07 
FEET PLUS OR MINUS TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 5: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 26 
MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. (PER WD #97-15678, 7/1/97) 
 
1-3399-201-1560-008 
THAT PORTION OF LOT 5, SHORT PLAT NO. 1560, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNNING 
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5 THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 45 
SECONDS WEST 502.60 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 17 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 35 SECONDS 
WEST 136.28 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST 543.07 
FEET PLUS OR MINUS TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 5: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 26 
MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. (PER WD #97-15678, 7/1/97) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND  

COMMUNITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION TO 
THE HEARING EXAMINER 

 
FILE NO: PP 18-02/PLN-2018-00146 

                 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
Property Owner:  Gerald and Kathryn Erwin 
    P.O. Box 820528 
    Vancouver, WA 98682 

 
Applicant:   Dean Maldonado 
    5453 Ridgeline Drive 
    Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Engineer:   Jason Mattox 
    HDJ – A Division of PBS 

400 Bradley Boulevard, Suite 106 
    Richland, Washington 99352 
 
Surveyor:   Alex Matarazzo 

HDJ – A Division of PBS 
400 Bradley Boulevard, Suite 106 

    Richland, Washington 99352 
 
Approval Criteria: 1. Comprehensive Plan – Land Use 
    2. KMC Title 18 – Zoning 
    3. KMC Title 17 – Subdivisions 
    4.  KMC Section 5.56 – Public Works Construction Standards 
    5. Washington State Environmental Policy Act 

 
Preliminary Plat Key Application Processing Dates: 
 

Pre-Application/Feasibility Meeting November 22, 2017 
Application Submittal January 25, 2018 
Determination of Completeness Issued January 25, 2018 
Notice of Application Mailed January 29, 2018 
City Department Review Meeting February 7, 2018 
SEPA Threshold Determination Issued NA – Under 30 lot C.O.K. threshold  
Property Posting Sign January 29, 2018 & February  23, 2018 
Date of Published Notice of Public Hearing February 25, 2018 
Date of Mailed Notice of Public Hearing February 22, 2018 
SEPA Appeal Period Ends NA 
Public Hearing Date March 12, 2018 
 
 

 
Exhibits: 
1  Staff Report 
2  Application 
3  Notice of Application/Mailing List 
4  Vicinity Map 
5  Preliminary Plat Plans 
6  Conceptual Grading Plan 
7  City Department Comments  
8  Outside Agency Comments 
 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Staff Analysis of Proposal & Discussion:  

The Grant Street Development, Preliminary Plat (PP 18-02) is a request for a 14 lot single-
family home subdivision on two parcels of land that total approximately 2.29 acres, and 
proposed to be developed in one phase.  The lots range in size from 6,721 square feet to 
11,439 square feet and an average lot size of 7,602 square feet.  The project is located west 
of N. Grant Street and south of W. Umatilla Avenue at 1507 N. Grant Street and 5529 W.  
Umatilla Avenue.  Access to the lots will be from N. Grant Street and W. Umatilla Avenue.  
The site is zoned Residential Medium Density (RM-6) which allows a minimum lot size of 
4,000 square feet.  The City of Kennewick’s Single-Family Residential Design Standards 
apply to this project.    

A Preliminary Plat (KMC 17.10) is the first step in a subdivision process for subdivisions with 
more than nine (9) lots and is an approval for overall lot layout and compliance with land use 
regulations.  A Final Plat is required to create legal lots for preliminary plats and is the last 
phase in the subdivision process, and must be recorded prior to the creation of individual 
lots.  Final plat approval is based on the Preliminary Plat conditions of approval.  A civil 
permit with a detailed review of street, utility and stormwater construction standards, and 
street and utility construction or bonding for incomplete work is required prior the final plat 
approval.   

Property History: 

1. The subject parcels were annexed into the City in April of 1986 with a Residential 
Low Density (RL) zoning designation (Ord. 2995).  

2. The zoning for the subject parcels was changed from Residential Low Density (RL) 
to Residential Medium Density – 6000 (RM-6) in May of 1992 (COZ 92-04 (Ord 
3393).  

 
Density/Lot Size: 
 

Per the Table of Residential Development Standards (KMC 18.12.010 A.2) the 
Residential Medium Density (RM) zoning district does not have a minimum 
density requirement but does have a maximum density requirement of 13 units 
per acre.  The proposed density is 6.11 units per acre.  The minimum lot size 
allowed is 4,000 square feet.  The smallest lot is proposed is 6,721 square feet.   

 
STAFF COMMENT: The preliminary plat as proposed meets the Residential 
Development Standards contained in KMC 18.12.010(A.2).  As well as the Single-Family 
Residential Design Standards.  

 
Traffic: 
 
The City’s traffic engineer has determined that this project meets concurrency for 
transportation. 

 
Both N. Grant Street and W. Umatilla Avenue will require half street improvements to include 
a minimum 24-foot wide pavement to allow for 2 travel lanes.  Half street improvements will 
include new sidewalks on both N. Grant Street and W. Umatilla Avenue. 
 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Traffic mitigation fees of approximately $938 per dwelling unit will be required per the City of 
Kennewick’s traffic mitigation ordinance (Ord. 5596).  The $938 per dwelling unit Traffic 
Impact Fee may have a cost of living increase adjustment in 2018.  Traffic mitigation fees 
can be paid at the time of building permit issuance or deferred until occupancy with a 
recorded covenant of payment obligation form.  

 
Storm Water: 
 
The City stormwater standard for residential subdivisions is to be designed to retain and 
dispose of the calculated difference between a 25-year, 24 hour event for the developed 
state and the 24-hour event for the natural pre-developed state.  Detention ponds (control 
outlet) may be used only where it can be clearly demonstrated that infiltration, or retention, 
are not feasible per City of Kennewick Standard Specifications.  Prior to Final Plat approval 
the applicant will be required to submit detailed civil engineering drawings for review and 
approval to the City’s Public Works department.  This submittal will include a stormwater 
plan that meets City standards.   
 
Streets & Utilities: 
 
A separate permit will be required from the Department of Public Works prior to construction 
for driveways, sidewalks, wheelchair ramps and utility extensions (water, sewer, street, 
storm drainage, street lights, fire hydrants, etc.).  Half street improvements for N. Grant 
Street and W. Umatilla Avenue will be required per KMC 5.56.270 and are required to be 
constructed per Kennewick Standard Detail 2-1, sheet 2 of 4.  The Residential Design 
Standards allow curb tight sidewalks as an option to separated sidewalks; however the 
sidewalk at driveway curb cuts needs to meet ADA standards.   

 
There is an existing 8-inch waterline at the southern portion of N. Grant Street which will 
need to be extended to serve all homes in the subdivision.  The developer will be required to 
loop the water mains to avoid buildup of stagnant water and minimize bacteria regrowth.   
 
There are existing 8-inch sanitary sewer lines at N. Edison/W. Umatilla and N. Harrison 
Street/W. Umatilla.  The developer will be required to extend sewer service to each lot. 

 
Parks: 
 
The City of Kennewick adopted a Park Impact Fee ordinance on December 5, 2017 that 
became effective January 1, 2018 (Ord. 5736).  The proposed subdivision is located west of 
US 395 (Service Area 1).  Park Impact Fees per the rate for Service Area 1 are $920 per 
single-family unit and are due at the time of Building Permit application, or can be deferred 
until occupancy with a recorded covenant of payment obligation form.  

  
 

Critical Areas: 
 
 Per the City of Kennewick Critical Area maps, there are not critical areas on the subject site. 
 

 
Schools: 
 
Per a memo from Doug Carl of the Kennewick School district, the schools that will serve the 
subdivision are Vista Elementary School, Chinook Middle School, and Kamiakin High 
School.  Students living in the proposed subdivision are in a walking zone for Kamiakin High 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 5 of 7 
 

School.  Vista Elementary School and Chinook Middle School is in a bussing zone.  All new 
streets for the subdivision will be required to have 5-foot wide sidewalks.  With the exception 
of a small section of N. Grant Street with low volumes of traffic, sidewalks will connect to 
Canal Drive and N. Edison Street to allow a safe walking route for students attending 
Kamiakin High School.   
 
Per the memo the Kennewick School District has the capacity to add students at all levels at 
the three schools mentioned above. 
 
 
Surrounding Property: 

 
The surrounding property to the east and north is in the City’s Urban Growth Area, but in the 
County and occupied by single-family homes.  Property to the southwest of the two subject 
parcels is vacant and zoned Commercial Office (CO).  Property to the west is zoned 
Residential High Density –Limited (RH-L) and occupied by a multi-family retirement home.  
The adjacent retirement home currently has signage and landscaping that encroaches on lot 
1 of the proposed subdivision.  The applicant has shown a proposed landscape easement 
for that lot.  City staff is proposing a Condition of Approval that will require a maintenance 
agreement if the landscape and signage remains with a landscape easement placed on the 
lot. 
 
Staff Comment: It is staff’s opinion that the proposed Preliminary Plat will be harmonious 
with the surrounding properties.  

 
 
Provisions for Public Health, Safety, and Welfare: 

 
Staff Comment: It is Staff’s opinion that appropriate provisions have been made for, but 
not limited to, the public health, safety, and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage 
ways, streets or roads, alleys, public sidewalks, utility easements and other public ways, 
transit stops, potable water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation areas, 
playgrounds, schools and school grounds, and the proposed subdivision has considered all 
other relevant facts and other planning features that assure safe walking conditions for 
students who walk to and from school. 

 
 

Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Staff is of the opinion that this request is consistent with and generally conforms to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and it will implement, goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Particularly the following:  
 
 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 1: “Provide for attractive, walkable, and well designed residential 
neighborhoods, with differing densities and compatible with neighboring areas.” 

Staff Comment: The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use, is zoned similar to much of the surrounding property 
and complies with development standards for Residential Medium Density (RM) zoning. 

 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 2: “Provide appropriate public facilities supporting residential areas.” 

Staff Comment: City water and sewer is available at N. Grant Street and/or W. 
Umatilla Avenue.  Half street improvements will be required for the subdivision. 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
RESIDENTIAL GOAL 3: “Promote a variety of residential densities with a minimum target 
of 3 units per acre as averaged throughout the urban area.” 

Staff Comment: The density for the proposed development area is 6.11 units per 
acre. 
 

CRITICAL AREAS AND SHORELINE GOAL 3: “Regulate or mitigate activities in or adjacent 
to critical areas or the shoreline to avoid adverse environmental impacts”. 

Staff Comment:  City of Kennewick critical area maps do not show any 
critical areas on or near the proposed project. 

 
 
 
The City of Kennewick hereby RECOMMENDS that Preliminary Plat 18-02 be 
APPROVED with the following conditions: 
 
1. Comply with City of Kennewick regulatory controls, policies and codes, including the 

Single-family Residential Design Standards. 
 

2. All fees required by the City shall be paid prior to the approval of the final plat. 
 

3. Construct residential streets per City of Kennewick Standard Detail 2-1, sheet 2 of 4.  
The Single-Family Residential Design Standards allow an option for curb tight sidewalks 
which may be used. 
 

4. Development shall be in conformance with the plat drawing (Exhibit 5). 
 

5. Comply with Traffic Engineer memorandum dated February 9, 2018 (Exhibit 7). 

6. Comply with Public Works memorandum dated February 6, 2018 (Exhibit 7). 

7. Comply with Kennewick Irrigation District letter dated February 12, 2018 (Exhibit 8).   

8. Geo-Tec reports are required for each lot at the time of building permit submittal.  With 
prior approval a blanket geological report may be accepted as long as all applicable 
codes are met regarding soil bearing capacity. 

9. Provide dust control method(s) such as hydroseeding for all areas of the site that are 
disturbed.  Re-hydroseeding may be required. 
 

10. Residential street trees are required to be installed prior to issuance of the Certificate of 
Occupancy for each new home.  Provide a list of street trees to be used for approval 
prior to planting. 

 
11. Existing landscape and signage that encumbers lot 1 to be removed prior to signing the 

final plat.  If the landscape and signage is to remain with the proposed landscape 
easement, execute a written agreement to the satisfaction of the City Attorney which will 
allow the City to make arrangements for maintenance landscape areas should the 
Homeowner’s Association or defined entity responsible for maintenance fail or refuse to 
maintain this area(s). 

 
 
 



  EXHIBIT 1 

Page 7 of 7 
 

12. The Preliminary Plat (PP 18-02) expires 5 years from the approval date.  The City may 
grant an extension, but any extension application must be applied for before the 
approved preliminary plat expires. 

 
 

 
Report Prepared By and Contact Person: 
Wes Romine 
Development Services Manager 
wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us   509-585-4558 

mailto:wes.romine@ci.kennewick.wa.us


EXHIBIT 2

Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT 3

Page 1 of 8



EXHIBIT 3

Page 2 of 8



EXHIBIT 3

Page 3 of 8



EXHIBIT 3

Page 4 of 8



EXHIBIT 3

Page 5 of 8



EXHIBIT 3

Page 6 of 8



Order Confirmation

Customer Fax

Customer

Customer Address

Payor Customer

Customer Account

Customer Phone

Payor Account

Ordered By

Customer EMail

Special Pricing

PO Number Tear Sheets

Invoice Text

Proofs Affidavits

Net Amount

Blind Box

Tax Amount

Promo Type

Package Buy

Total Amount

Materials

Payment Method

Payment Amount Amount Due

Payor Address

Payor Phone

KENNEWICK CITY OF/LEGALS KENNEWICK CITY OF/LEGALS

450496 450496

Melinda Didier

PO BOX 6108

KENNEWICK WA 99336  USA

PO BOX 6108

KENNEWICK WA 99336 USA

 0  0  1

NOA -PP 18-02 Grant Street Development

$239.77 $0.00 $239.77

Invoice

$0.00

Sales Rep

ccortez@tricityherald.com

Order Taker

ccortez@tricityherald.com

0003540037

Ad Order Number Order Source

509-585-4200 509-585-4200

$239.77

_FRM_OrderConfirmation.rptPage 1 of 32/22/2018  9:17:26AM

EXHIBIT 3

Page 7 of 8



Ad Attributes Ad Released Pick UpExternal Ad Number

Ad Number Ad Type Production Method Production Notes

0003540037-01 TRI-Legal Liner AdBooker

No

Ad Order Information

Ad Size Color

1 X 96 li

0301 - Legals & Public Notices

0300 - Legals ClassifiedTRI- Tri-City Herald

02/25/2018

Run Dates

Schedule CostPlacementProduct 

PositionRun Schedule Invoice Text

Times Run

 1

NOA -PP 18-02 Grant Street Development

$239.77

_FRM_OrderConfirmation.rptPage 2 of 32/22/2018  9:17:26AM

EXHIBIT 3

Page 8 of 8



Pe
rm

itt
in

g 
M

ap

So
ur

ce
s:

 
E

sr
i, 

H
ER

E
, 

D
eL

or
m

e,
In

te
rm

ap
, i

nc
re

m
en

t P
 C

or
p.

,

Se
w

er
M

ai
nl

in
e

St
re

et
N

am
e

W
at

er
M

ai
nl

in
e

Su
rv
ey
A
dd

re
ss
Po

in
t

<a
ll 

ot
he

r v
al

ue
s>

Ap
ar

tm
en

t

Bu
ild

in
g

C
on

do

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e

Pa
rc

el

Su
rv

ey
Ad

dr
es

sP
oi

nt
S

up
p

Su
rv

ey
Ea

se
m

en
t

Ja
nu

ar
y 

29
, 2

01
8

C
ity

 o
f K

en
ne

w
ic

k
Ar

cG
IS

 W
eb

A
pp

 B
ui

ld
er

1 
in

ch
 =

 2
00

 fe
et

0
20

0
40

0
10

0
ft

0
60

12
0

30
m

1:
2,

40
0

Th
is

 p
la

n 
is

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l u

se
 o

nl
y.

 C
ity

 o
f K

en
ne

w
ic

k 
ac

ce
pt

s 
no

 li
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 e

rr
or

 w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r. 

EXHIBIT 4

Page 1 of 1

wesr
Polygonal Line

wesr
Text Box
Project  LocationParcel #1-3399-201-1560-008 &#1-3399-201-1560-009PP 18-02

wesr
Line



W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

1

11,439 SF

2

6,760 SF

3

6,760 SF

4

6,760 SF

5

6,760 SF

6

6,760 SF

7

6,749 SF

11

6,758 SF

12

6,758 SF

13

6,758 SF

14

7,127 SF

8

6,744 SF

9

6,721 SF

10

6,812 SF

1

3

6

'

68'

1
3
0
'

108'

52'

52'

1
3
0
'

52'

1
3
0
'

52'

52'

52'

1
3
0
'

52'

52'

1
3
0
'

52'

52'

1
3
0
'

53'

5
6
'

5
5
'

2

1

'

45'

102'

3
6
'

122'

5
5
'

122'

5
3
'

130'

3
4
'

5
2
'

130'

5
2
'

5
2
'

5
2
'

130'

5
2
'

130'

5
2
'

3
5
'

L

=

3

1

'

R

=

2

0

'

110'

5
5
'

L

=

3

1

'

R

=

2

0

'

E

X

T

G

 
6

0

'
 
G

A

S

L

I
N

E

 
E

S

M

T

E
X

T
G

 
5
'

 
I
R

R
 
E

S
M

T

E
X

T
G

 
1
0
'

 
U

T
I
L
 
E

S
M

T

EXTG 10'

 UTIL ESMT

EXTG 5'

 IRR ESMT

EXTG 10'

 UTIL ESMT

E
X

T
G

 
1
0
'

 
U

T
I
L
 
E

S
M

T

UMATILLA AVE

N
 
G

R
A

N
T

 
S

T

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

4

E

R

W

I

N

 

G

E

R

A

L

D

 

&

 

K

A

T

H

E

R

Y

N

EXTG

LANDSCAPING

MONUMENT

P

A

R

K

 

V

I

S

T

A

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 
 
E

S

M

T

W

I
D

T

H

 
V

A

R

I
E

S

2

0

'
 
L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E
E

S

M

T

E

X

T

G

 
2

4

'

 
P

R

I
V

A

T

E

 
A

C

C

E

S

S

1
8
'
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
S

/
W

 
&

 
U

T
I
L
 
E

S
M

T

18' PUBLIC S/W &

 UTIL ESMT

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

8

E

R

W

I

N

 

G

E

R

A

L

D

 

&

 

K

A

T

H

E

R

Y

N

6
0
'
 
E

X
T

G
 
R

/
W

EXTG EDGE OF PAVEMENT

60' EXTG R/W

E
X

T
G

 
1
0
'

 
U

T
I
L
 
E

S
M

T

PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

PARCEL LINE

FENCING TO BE CONSTRUCTED

ALONG ABUTTING STREET AS

STATED IN KMC CHAPTER 17.20.040

FENCING TO BE CONSTRUCTED

ALONG ABUTTING STREET AS

STATED IN KMC CHAPTER 17.20.040

C

O

L

U

M

B

I
A

 
R

I
V

E

R

H

W

Y

 
2

4

0

COLUMBIA PARK

Y

E

L

L

O

W

S

T

O

N

E

 
A

V

E

UMATILLA AVE

G
R

A
N

T
 
S

T

E
D

I
S

O
N

 
S

T

C

A

N

A

L

 

D

R

C

O

L

U

M

B

I
A

 
P

A

R

K

 
T

R

A

I
L

SITE

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER:

JERRY ERWIN

ATTN: DEAN MALDONODO

5453 RIDGELINE DRIVE, STE 160

KENNEWICK, WA 99338

(509) 987-2334

SURVEYOR:

PBS ENGINEERING AND

ENVIRONMENTAL

ATTN: ALEX MATARAZZO, PLS

400 BRADLEY BLVD, SUITE 106

RICHLAND, WA 99352

PHONE: (509) 942-1600

ENGINEER:

PBS ENGINEERING AND

ENVIRONMENTAL

ATTN:  JASON MATTOX, PE

400 BRADLEY BLVD, SUITE 106

RICHLAND, WA 99352

PHONE: (509) 942-1600

BASIS OF BEARINGS

CITY OF KENNEWICK: NAD 83/2011 WASHINGTON

STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE,

PARTICULARLY S01°00'58"E ALONG THE WEST LINE

OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33,

TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 29 EAST OF THE

WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF KENNEWICK,

BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON. SEE CONTROL

TABLE

SITE AREA:

TOTAL LOT COUNT:

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

LOTS:

MINIMUM LOT AREA:

MAXIMUM LOT AREA:

OVERALL AVG. LOT AREA:

2.29 ACRES

14 LOTS

14 LOTS

(13 UNITS PER ACRE MIN)

6,721 SF

11,439 SF

7,602 SF

LAND USE TABLE

CITY OF KENNEWICK FILE #:

PRE 17-49 / PLN-2017-0287

LEGEND

FOUND SURVEY MONUMENT AS NOTED

FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITHIN 0.10' OF

CORNER AND / OR AS NOTED

CALCULATED ONLY, NOT FOUND OR SET

ELEVATION

INTERSECTION

PAGE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

SQUARE FEET

TYPICAL

SIDEWALK, IRRIGATION & UTILITY

EASEMENT (OR A COMBINATION

THEREOF)

VOLUME

EL

INTX

PG.

R/W

SF

TYP

SW, IRR &

UTIL ESMT

VOL.

735

SHEET ID

SHEET OF

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

4
0

0
 
B

r
a

d
l
e

y
 
B

l
v
d

,
 
S

t
e

 
1

0
6

R
i
c
h

l
a

n
d

,
 
W

A
 
9

9
3

5
2

5
0

9
.
9

4
2

.
1

6
0

0

P
B

S
 
E
n

g
i
n

e
e
r
i
n

g
 
a
n

d

E
n

v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n

t
a
l
 
I
n

c
.

p
b

s
u

s
a
.
c
o

m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F

i
l
e

n
a

m
e

:
 
L

:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
6

6
0

0
0

\
6

6
0

5
2

\
6

6
0

5
2

-
0

0
1

\
C

i
v
i
l
\
C

A
D

\
W

o
r
k
i
n

g
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
P

r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
-
P

l
a

t
\
6

6
0

5
2

-
0

0
1

_
P

r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
-
P

l
a

t
.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

a
y
o

u
t
 
T

a
b

:
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U

s
e

r
:
 
J
a

s
o

n
 
L

.
 
M

a
t
t
o

x
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C

A
D

 
P

l
o

t
 
D

a
t
e

/
T

i
m

e
:
 
1

/
2

3
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

0
:
4

8
:
5

7
 
A

M

Know what's

R

Full Size Sheet Format Is 22x34; If Printed Size Is Not 22x34, Then This Sheet Format Has Been Modified & Indicated Drawing Scale Is Not Accurate.

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
 
F

O
R

:

A
 
S

I
T

E
 
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

 
I
N

 
K

E
N

N
E

W
I
C

K
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

SG

JLM

DECEMBER 2017

66052.001

1 1

Located In The NW 1/4 Of Sec. 33, T. 9 N., R. 29 E., W.M.

PRELIMINARY PLAT

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

PRELIMINARY

Scale  1" = 30'

K0891           328594.74        1971555.74      424.26             SMIC 3.25IN BC

K0892           325956.42        1971571.68       501.80            SMIC 3.25IN BC

K0929           325920.38        1968878.94       510.95            SMIC 2IN PIPE

K0930           328559.52        1968832.13       450.39            SMIC 2.5 SQ BOLT

CONTROL

POINT NORTHING     EASTING ELEVATION     DESCRIPTION

CITY OF KENNEWICK SURVEY

GPS CONTROL TABLE

NAD83(2001) & NAVD88

T

R

I

C

I

T

Y

H

E

I

G

H

T

S

 

N

o

.

 

2

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

1

R

O

Y

A

L

 

C

O

L

U

M

B

I

A

N

W

A

 

L

L

C

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOT 5 OF SHORT PLAT NO. 1560 FILED IN BOOK 1 OF SHORT

PLATS AT PAGE 1560 UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NUMBER 86-7602

RECORDS OF BENTON  COUNTY, STATE OF WASHINGTON

SECTION LINE OR SUB-SECTION LINE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING GROUND CONTOUR

EXISTING CENTERLINE

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY CENTERLINE

PROPOSED LOT BOUNDARY

PROPOSED ESMT

P

A

R

K

 

V

I

S

T

A

BASIS OF ELEVATION

EXHIBIT 5

Page 1 of 1



W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

N
 
G

R
A

N
T

 
S

T

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

4

E

R

W

I

N

 

G

E

R

A

L

D

 

&

 

K

A

T

H

E

R

Y

N

P

A

R

K

 

V

I

S

T

A

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

8

E

R

W

I

N

 

G

E

R

A

L

D

 

&

 

K

A

T

H

E

R

Y

N

PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

PARCEL LINE

1
8
'
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
S

/
W

 
&

 
U

T
I
L
 
E

S
M

T

18' PUBLIC S/W &

 UTIL ESMT

6
0
'
 
E

X
T

G
 
R

/
W

60' EXTG R/W

E

X

T

G

 
6

0

'
 
G

A

S

L

I
N

E

 
E

S

M

T

EXTG 6" WATERLINE ZONE 1

8" WATERLINE TO BE CONSTRUCTED

ZONE 2

E
X

T
G

 
8
"
 
W

A
T

E
R

L
I
N

E
 
Z

O
N

E
 
2

8" WATERLINE TO

BE CONSTRUCTED

ZONE 2

EXTG 8" WATERLINE ZONE 2

8

SEE NOTE 1

9

SEE NOTE 1

10

SEE NOTE 1

11

SEE NOTE 1

12

SEE NOTE 1

13

SEE NOTE 1

14

EXTG SAN MH

RIM: 457.24

10" INV IN: 449.05 (W)

10" INV OUT: 448.88 (S)

CONNECT TO EXTG

ZONE 2 WATERLINE

SHEET ID

SHEET OF

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

4
0

0
 
B

r
a

d
l
e

y
 
B

l
v
d

,
 
S

t
e

 
1

0
6

R
i
c
h

l
a

n
d

,
 
W

A
 
9

9
3

5
2

5
0

9
.
9

4
2

.
1

6
0

0

P
B

S
 
E
n

g
i
n

e
e
r
i
n

g
 
a
n

d

E
n

v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n

t
a
l
 
I
n

c
.

p
b

s
u

s
a
.
c
o

m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F

i
l
e

n
a

m
e

:
 
L

:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
6

6
0

0
0

\
6

6
0

5
2

\
6

6
0

5
2

-
0

0
1

\
C

i
v
i
l
\
C

A
D

\
W

o
r
k
i
n

g
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
P

r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
-
P

l
a

t
\
6

6
0

5
2

-
0

0
1

_
P

r
e

l
i
m

i
n

a
r
y
-
G

r
a

d
i
n

g
.
d

w
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

a
y
o

u
t
 
T

a
b

:
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U

s
e

r
:
 
K

i
m

b
e

r
l
y
 
A

.
 
S

e
l
p

h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C

A
D

 
P

l
o

t
 
D

a
t
e

/
T

i
m

e
:
 
1

2
/
1

3
/
2

0
1

7
 
8

:
2

6
:
4

9
 
A

M

Know what's

R

Full Size Sheet Format Is 22x34; If Printed Size Is Not 22x34, Then This Sheet Format Has Been Modified & Indicated Drawing Scale Is Not Accurate.

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
&

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N
 
F

O
R

:

A
 
S

I
T

E
 
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

 
I
N

 
K

E
N

N
E

W
I
C

K
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

SG

JLM

DECEMBER 2017

66052.001

1 1

Located In The NW 1/4 Of Sec. 33, T. 9 N., R. 29 E., W.M.

PRELIMINARY GRADING & UTILITY PLAN

PRELIMINARY

Scale  1" = 30'

T

R

I

C

I

T

Y

H

E

I

G

H

T

S

 

N

o

.

 

2

1

3

3

9

9

2

0

1

1

5

6

0

0

0

1

R

O

Y

A

L

 

C

O

L

U

M

B

I

A

N

W

A

 

L

L

C

P

A

R

K

 

V

I

S

T

A

GENERAL NOTES

1. LOTS 5-13  WILL BE SERVICED WITH A PRIVATE PRESSURIZED

SEWER SYSTEM. THE PRIVATE SYSTEM WILL CONNECT TO SAN

MH 1 IN UMATILLA AVENUE OR THE EXISTING MANHOLE AT THE

INTERSECTION OF GRANT STREET AND SKAGIT COURT.

EXHIBIT 6

Page 1 of 1



 
 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4481      Fax (509) 585-4451      Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

1 of 2 

Memorandum 
Public Works 

 
 
 

 
 

To:  Wes Romine, Development Services Manager  
 
From:  Fernando Garcia, Development Services Supervisor 
 
Date:  February 6, 2018 
 
Re:  Public Works Consolidated Comments         
 
Project: PP No.18-02 / PLN-2018-00146 
   
1. Developer will be required to provide construction of half street improvements public 

roads, sidewalks, streetlights, storm drainage, and designate sidewalk and utility 
easements all in conformance with the latest City of Kennewick (COK) Standard 
Specifications and details.  
 

2. As part of all residential development construction plans, there shall be a separate 
schematic drawing which, at a minimum, shows the power source(s), wiring diagram, 
street light pole spacing, and street permanent signing per COK Standard Specifications 
7-10.  Combine signing, striping, and illumination plans on the same drawing with other 
elements left off. 

 
3. Sidewalks shall be widened an additional 18-inches when adjoining a wall, or fence, per 

COK detail 2-10, sheet 1 of 8, note 4. 
 

4. There is an existing Pressure Zone 1, 6 inch water line in W. Umatilla Street. There is also 
a Pressure Zone 2, 8 inch waterline running through W. Tucannon Ave., turning south 
through N. Grant St. and west through W. Skagit Ct. See record drawings A-1026, and E-
1126. Homes fronting Umatilla shall not be serviced from the existing 6-inch line in Zone 1; 
pressures for some of those homes would be substandard.  All homes associated with this 
development to be serviced from Zone 2 and extending the water main an additional 500 
LF west to connect up with existing zone 2 water main, individual pressure reducing laves 
(PRVs) to be installed on homes exceeding 80 psi static. A hydraulic analysis will not likely 
be required as this development is located near the bottom of the pressure zone with lots 
of static head available.  

 
5.  The Developer shall provide and install 1-inch water services for each lot at his or her 

expense per City of Kennewick Standard Specification Section 4-3.01. The meter shall be 
placed as close to the main line as possible (not in a drive way or parking area) per KMC 
14.12.080. 

 
6. Developer will be required to loop all water mains to the same zone 2 water mains to avoid 

the buildup of stagnant water and be able to assist in minimizing bacteria re-growth and 

Leading the Way 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 1 of 11

mailto:Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us


PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4481      Fax (509) 585-4451      Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

2 of 2 

also taste and odor concerns associated with stagnant water. All proposed extensions 
must conform to the adopted master plan, as amended and all proposed extensions of 
water mains must conform to an overall program for a grid system, with provisions made 
for extensions or looping for circulation where at all possible. Per KMC 14.10.010. 

 
7. Potable water is not available for irrigation purposes.  Provide irrigation water to irrigate 

proposed plat.   
 

8. Provide water lines and hydrants as required by Fire Department to meet fire protection. 
 
9. There is an 8 inch Sewer mainline stubbed to the west side of the intersection of the N. 

Edison St. and W. Umatilla Ave. See Record Drawing E-1163. There is also a sanitary 
sewer main located at the intersection of N Harrison St and W Umatilla Ave installed by 
Record Drawing F1038. The developer shall provide a sewer service to each lot at his or 
her own expense. 

 
10. All plans showing existing water or sewer utilities will need to call out the plan set number 

that installed such utilities as part of the design. All plans need to clearly identify the size 
and type of water/sewer utility that is being proposed or connected to (ie “Existing 8-inch 
Water” or similar). 

 
11. The City has formally adopted the Storm Management Manual of Eastern Washington. All 

design, construction, and post construction management of storm drainage facilities shall 
be in accordance with the Storm Management Manual of Eastern Washington and City 
Standards.  

 
12. Residential sub-divisions storm drainage systems to be dedicated to the public shall be 

designed to retain and dispose of the calculated difference between a 25-year, 24-hour, 
event for the developed state and the 24-hour event for the natural pre-developed state.  
Detention ponds (control outlet) may be used only where it can be clearly demonstrated 
that infiltration, or retention, are not feasible per City of Kennewick Standard Specifications 
section 5-9.02. Provide infiltration testing at the location and depth of the planned 
infiltration structures as well as a soils log 5 feet below that point. 

 
13. Provide a Storm Water Site Plan (drainage report) and storm water design following the 

Storm Water Management Manual for Eastern Washington (SMMEW). 
 

14. All injection control wells (infiltration structures) must be installed and registered per the 
Washington State Underground Injection Control (UIC) rule prior to construction. Provide 
UIC registration numbers for all drywells or other infiltration structures on the Record 
Drawings and before Public Works construction permit is accepted. See UIC Registration 
link; http://www.ecy.wa.gov/PROgrams/wq/grndwtr/uic/index.html      

 
15. For civil plan reviews submit the following: 

a. Application for Civil Review and Permitting  
b. One full size set (24” x 36”) Xerox copy of the construction plans with Storm 

Calculations  
c. One full size PDF copy of each shall be submitted to the Public Works 

Department for review. 
 

16. Plan review and utility fees will be quoted from the construction cost from the Contractor 
selected by the Developer to construct the project.  Cost shall be paid in the amount of five 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 2 of 11

mailto:Fernando.Garcia@ci.kennewick.wa.us
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/PROgrams/wq/grndwtr/uic/index.html


PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1010 E. Chemical Drive      PO Box 6108      Kennewick, WA  99336-0108 
(509) 585-4289       Fax (509) 585-4511      Bruce.Beauchene@ci.kennewick.wa.us 

percent (5%), and the construction cost shall be determined by the actual bid document 
reviewed, and approved, by the City Engineer. 

 
 

 
17. Kennewick Survey Data requirements: 

a. All projects will be built with current City Survey Data.   
b. For detailed information on Kennewick Survey Data and Record Drawings & 

Easements go to COK website @ https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-
Review 

c. Questions contact Matt Garrity at matthew.garrity@ci.kennewick.wa.us  509-
585-4531 

 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 3 of 11

https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-Review
https://www.go2kennewick.com/314/Civil-Plan-Review
mailto:matthew.garrity@ci.kennewick.wa.us


______________________________________________________________________________ 
Traffic Engineering Division 

1010 E. Chemical Drive * PO Box 6108 * Kennewick, WA  99336 
Jeff Herb – 509-585-4400 * Joe Seet – 509-585-4527* Alisha Piper – 509-585-4342 

 

To: Wes Romine, Development Services Manager   

From: Joe Seet, Assistant Traffic Engineer  

Date:  February 9, 2018 

Re:  Traffic Engineering Comments for SW Corner of W Umatilla Ave & N 
Grant St - 14 Lots 

Project: PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-00146 

KMC 13.16 Transportation Impact Fees 
 

1. The 2017 Traffic Impact Fees is $938/ Dwelling Unit based on a land use of 
Single-Family Detached Housing.   Based on the submitted project documents, 
Traffic Impact Fees are estimated at $13,132 based on an estimated project size 
of 14 Dwelling Units.   

2. Residential single family and duplexes – The final fee may be deferred until the 
time of closing of the sale of the unit by recording a covenant against the 
property. 

Proposed Driveway(s) 
 

1. Refer to CoK Dwg. No. 2-10 (9 & 10 of 10), for the maximum residential driveway 
width(s) at bottom of curb cut.  

2. Residential driveway width(s) at bottom of curb:  
• 2 car garage – 24’ maximum;  
• 3 car garage – 30’ maximum.   

3. Driveway curb cut transition is 6’ minimum at 12:1 maximum longitudinal slope. 
Landing pad at the end of the curb cut transition is 5’ minimum (or 2.5’ minimum 
if abuts a common property line.) 

Right of Way and Easement 
 

1. W Umatilla Ave and N Grant St are functionally classified as Local Street. 
2. Half street improvements are required for W Umatilla Ave and N Grant St, which 

includes pavement widening to match into existing asphaltic roadway, curb, 
gutter, sidewalk and street lighting per City of Kennewick Standard Drawing 2-1.  

MEMORANDUM 

 Traffic Engineering Division 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 4 of 11



PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-000146 
Page 2 of 6 
 

The street improvements are to maintain a minimum of 24’ pavement width for 2 
travel lanes.   

3. W Umatilla Ave and N Grant St, was constructed to a previously adopted City 
standards and does not match the current CoK Std. Dwg. 2-1. The roadway at 
the development limits will require transitional tapers for the roadway’s travel 
lanes to maintain a consistent traffic path. 

4. An additional 8’ of public utility easements are required to be recorded along the 
proposed development’s frontages on W Umatilla Ave and N Grant St. to provide 
an 18’ public utility easement per Std. Dwg. 2-1 

5. The Civil plans will need to include a signing/striping and street lighting plan 
sheets.   

6. Note any required or recommended signing or marking. All traffic signage must 
be delivered to the City Sign Shop prior to installation.  The City will need 10 
working days to inspect and bar code the signs for the City sign inventory. 
Contact Josh Soggie, Street Supervisor, at 585-4510 to arrange for delivery time. 

American Disability Act (ADA) Compliance 
  

1. All proposed pedestrian facilities within the public right of way and easement, 
including but not limited to driveways, sidewalks, curb ramps, etc., shall be ADA 
compliant while maintaining Pedestrian Accessibility Route (PAR) accessibility, 
continuity and connectivity. 

2. At all proposed sidewalk termini, provide asphalt transition ramps or match into 
existing sidewalks for ADA compliance. 

Street Lights 
  

1. Per KMC 5.53, Public Works Construction Standard Chapter 6 requires the 
design and installation of roadway lighting per City of Kennewick Standard 
Drawings 6-1 and 6-2 along W Umatilla Ave and N Grant St.  

2. Roadway lighting plan sheet – Per CoK Standard Specifications 6-1.02, the 
lighting plan sheet needs to include details and call-outs for the power source, 
meter locations, junction boxes, conduits and conduits. 

3. A new power source is needed for the new roadway lighting.  The new roadway 
lighting is not allowed to connect into existing street light circuits for power 
source. 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 5 of 11



PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-000146 
Page 3 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 6 of 11



PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-000146 
Page 4 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 7 of 11



PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-000146 
Page 5 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 8 of 11



PP 18-02 / PLN-2018-000146 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 9 of 11



      

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

210 W 6TH AVE * PO Box 6108* Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-585-4563 * 509-585-4442 Fax 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To:  Wes Romine, Development Services Manager  
 
From:  Joe Terpenning, Deputy Fire Marshal 
 
Date:  Tuesday, February 06, 2018 
 
Re:  Grant Street Dev. (S.W. corner of Umatilla & Grant) 
 
Project: PLN 2018-00146 
   
 
1. In accordance with City of Kennewick Engineering standards, fire hydrants shall be 

installed at all intersections, and average 500’ spacing along streets. IFC Appendix C 
2. The Fire Main shall be looped and capable of providing a minimum fire flow of 1000 gpm 

at 20 psi. IFC Appendix B 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 Fire Department 

 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 10 of 11



Building Safety Division 
210 West 6th Avenue 

Kennewick, WA 99336 
Phone: (509) 585‐4276 

onestop@ci.kennewick.wa.us 
 
Date 01/31/18 
RE: PP 18‐02  PLN‐2018‐00146 
 
Building has no comments at this time. 
 
 

Tony Ostoja ICC CBO 
Building Official  
Tony.Ostoja@ci.kennewick.wa.us 
(509) 585-4387 

 
 
 
The solemn duty of a Building Official, is the protection of health, safety and 
welfare of the public by creating safe buildings and communities 
 

EXHIBIT 7

Page 11 of 11

mailto:onestop@ci.kennewick.wa.us
mailto:Tony.Ostoja@ci.kennewick.wa.us


EXHIBIT 8

Page 1 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 2 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 3 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 4 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 5 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 6 of 9



 
 

Doug Carl • Capital Projects Director 
5501 W. Metaline • Kennewick, WA 99336 
P: (509) 222-7667 • F: (509) 222-5057 
doug.carl@ksd.org • www.ksd.org 
 

 

February 27, 2018  

Wes Romine 
Development Services Manager 
City of Kennewick 
210 W. 6th Ave. 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 

Wes, 

This memo is written in regards to your request for the Kennewick School District #17 to 
address capacity questions in regards to the Grant Street Development preliminary plat 
application. The school district was asked to identify the boundary schools for this development 
and state if each of the schools were within walking zones or received bussing.  The boundary 
schools for this development are Vista Elementary (Bussing Zone), Chinook Middle School 
(Bussing Zone) and Kamiakin High School (Walking Zone).   

The Kennewick School District has a Ten-Year Plan in place that forecasts future growth.  It is 
impossible to know exactly where pockets of growth may occur, but the district works closely 
with the City of Kennewick and Benton County to make sure that we own property near 
projected areas of growth.  Having property near potential growth areas allows us to add 
schools where the students are living, and to avoid additional bussing or redistricting of our 
boundaries.  That being said, we do occasionally have to redistrict to keep our schools within 
our preferred enrollment numbers. 

The Kennewick School District has the capacity to add students at all levels and at the three 
schools mentioned in this letter. Forecasted growth in additional boundary areas of the 
Kennewick School District makes it difficult to know if any redistricting could result because of 
this proposed development. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Doug Carl 

EXHIBIT 8

Page 7 of 9



EXHIBIT 8

Page 8 of 9



 
 
 

1 

 

Department of Energy 
 

Bonneville Power Administration 
2211 North Commercial Avenue 

Pasco, Washington  99301 

                          

 TRANSMISSION BUSINESS LINE 

January 29, 2018 
 
In reply refer to: Preliminary Plat Application PP 18-02/PLN-2017-00146 

Located within a Portion of Section 33, Township 9 North, 
                            Range 29 East, W.M., City of Kennewick, Benton County, Washington  
 
 
Wes Romine A.I.A 
City of Kennewick  
Development Services Manager 
210 W. 6th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Dear Wes: 
 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) has had the opportunity to review, Preliminary Plat 
Application PP 18-02/PLN-2017-00146. The plat area consists of 2 parcels approximately 2.29 
acres in total size with 14 lots. The project is generally located north of Canal Drive at the 
southwest corner of W. Umatilla Avenue and N. Grant Street, Kennewick, WA, County parcel 
number 133992011560008 and 133992011560009. 

 
In researching our records, we have found that this proposal will not directly impact BPA 
facilities in that area. BPA does not have any objections to the approval of this request at this 
time. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review this application. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Joseph E. Cottrell II 
Field Realty Specialist 

 

EXHIBIT 8

Page 9 of 9


	Blank Page
	EXHIBITS (3).pdf
	Exhibit 7 City Dept Comments.pdf
	Traffic Comments.pdf
	Disclaimer
	KMC 13.16 Transportation Impact Fees
	Proposed Driveway(s)
	Traffic Engineering Division
	MEMORANDUM
	Right of Way and Easement
	American Disability Act (ADA) Compliance
	Street Lights

	Fire Dept Comments.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Fire Department



	Exhibit 8 Outside Agency Comments.pdf
	BPA Coments.pdf
	Department of Energy



	Blank Page
	PP 18-02 EXHIBITS (3).pdf
	Exhibit 7 City Dept Comments.pdf
	Traffic Comments.pdf
	KMC 13.16 Transportation Impact Fees
	Proposed Driveway(s)
	Right of Way and Easement
	Traffic Engineering Division
	MEMORANDUM
	American Disability Act (ADA) Compliance
	Street Lights

	Fire Dept Comments.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	Fire Department



	Exhibit 8 - Outside Agency Comments.pdf
	BPA Comments.pdf
	Department of Energy




	The: NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR PRE PLAT
	sign was posted on: 4001 S VANCOUVER ST
	ProjectPermit: PP 18-01/PLN-2018-00064
	Proposal: DIVIDE A 5.04 ACRE LOT INTO 19 LOTS
	Posted by: MICHELLE DELLINGER
	Phone: 509-585-4416
	Date of Posting: 1/16/18
	Date of Signature: 1/16/18


